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LU-4(I) COMMITTEE'S PRIORITIES AND PROCEDURES; PRESENTATIONS FROM
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCIES (ORIENTATION WORKSHOP BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING)

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel) _ . Land Use Committee meeting of February 2, 2011 will come to
order. May 1 please request that anyone that has cell phones or pagers or any other type of
electronic equipment, please turn it off or put it on the silent mode.
We have with us today our Vice-Chair, Mr. Michael White, of the Committee, Mr. Pontanilla,
Mr. Victorino
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good afternoon.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Ms. Cochran -COUNCILIVIEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and Ms_ Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR CARROLL: And the rest are going to try to join us later, but we do have quorum. With us
today, we have James Giroux, our Deputy Corporation Counsel, Will Spence, our Planning
Director -MR. SPENCE: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and we have the following Planners from the Department of Planning, Ann Cua,
Jeffrey Dack, Kurt Wollenhaupt, James Buika, Tara Owens, and Danny Dias, our Committee
Staff, Kirstin Hamman, our Legislative Attorney, and Pauline Martins, our Committee Secretary.
Do we have anyone signed up for testimony? Is there anyone that wishes to give testimony at
this time? Do we have a communication problem?
Note: Pause.

CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, okay. It seems my voice is too soft. I have to go closer to the mic. Excuse
me if you couldn't hear everything the first time. Since there is no one in the audience and no
one has signed up to give testimony, if there's no objection, we will close testimony.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Testimony is now closed. We have one item on the agenda today,
Committee's...LU-4(1), Committee's Priorities and Procedures; Presentations From The County
Administrative Agencies, and this is an orientation workshop by the Department of Planning.
And the purpose of this workshop is there is always changes and not everyone is familiar with all
the operations that they go through and how it affects the Committee. And Councilmember
Hokama has joined us. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: We are now going to have the.. .excuse me, Mr. Spence, could you give us some
opening remarks?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Committee Members. I'm very much looking
forward to working with you and so is my staff. We have today prepared a, several PowerPoints
for this Committee, mostly looking at an overview of our regulatory processes for land uses. I'm
going to keep it very brief, but part of why I...staff is here to, you know, I, I want you to be
familiar with them. You're going to see a lot of them for this Committee. They have my full
support and, you know, I'm, as the Director, I'm very willing to work with you on whatever
issues come up for this, for this Committee.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And if any of the Members have questions right after each member
presents, I'll allow questions before the next Planning person comes up. We are now going to
recess for two minutes to lower the screen. Recess. . . . (gavel)
RECESS:

1:35 p.m.

RECONVENE: 1:37 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . (gavel).... Land Use Committee meeting of February 2, 2011 will come to
order, and I will now turn the time over to the Planning Department, Ann Cua. Ann?

. . . BEGIN PRESENTATION . . .
MS. CUA: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Land Use Committee. I'm going to be going
over our agenda for today to, to introduce to you who's gonna be presenting to you and, and what
they're going to be speaking on.
So, the first item that we're gonna be talking about is the overall planning framework and Jeffrey
Dack is gonna be speaking to you about that. And then we're gonna bring on Kurt Wollenhaupt,
and he's gonna talk about Title 19 and the zoning process and some of the permits that we issue
based on zoning. And then we're gonna bring out two members of our coastal management
team. We're gonna bring out Jim Buika, and he's gonna talk about our Coastal Zone
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Management program. And then we're gonna bring out Tara Owens. She's gonna talk about
climate and sea level rise. I'm gonna come back up here after that and talk about the
Environmental Assessment process, EA's and EIS's. And then finally we're gonna conclude with
the, the application project, process for projects reviewed by the Land Use Committee.
The Planning Department has been doing this orientation for you since 2007, so this is going to
be the third time, and in 2009, this last segment was added. And what we had hoped to do is to
really focus on, 'cause there's so many applications you're gonna hear and it is somewhat
overwhelming. And we're gonna be here to answer any questions that you have. But with all the
permits that we're gonna talk about, we did want to focus on the ones that are gonna come to you
and tell you what happens with those applications from the time they come in our door to the
time they come to you for action. So, we're gonna take you through that a little bit.
So, with that I'd like to introduce our first presenter, Jeffrey Dack, and he's gonna talk about the
planning framework.
MR. DACK: Yes, good afternoon. I'll relocate the mic here. I'd like to lead off this workshop with an
overview presentation of the various major components that comprise the planning framework in
the State of Hawaii and the County of Maui. They are the Hawaii State Constitution, the Hawaii
State Planning Act, the State Land Use Commission, County Zoning, Environmental Impact
Statement and the Coastal Zone Management Program.
Respective island planning commissions routinely receive, review, and make recommendations
to the Council on all the various projects that get referred to your Committee. The Planning
Department draws upon and coordinates a variety of resources, which are made available to the
commissions for their reviews. So, the commissions will be in, in the middle of the next few
slides. Your Committee then indirectly also benefits from these resources. But they're also
important for many of the administrative reviews and permits issued by the Planning Department
and the commission's many discretionary permits, which are not required to be reviewed by the
Council.
I'll go into a little detail about these various resources. On, on this slide is the Urban Design
Review Board, which is advisory and makes recommendations on design related.. .to projects
located within the Special Management Area. Further, the Board makes recommendations on
other areas related to design, such as comprehensive signage plans, design guidelines for the
County...for the Country Town Business District, and other areas that the Department deems
necessary for input. The Board's comprised of nine members and four alternates with four
members having an interest in design and the remaining members being design professionals, for
example architects, landscape architects, and civil engineers. Additionally, the Board is required
to have members from the islands of Molokai and Lanai. The Board is staffed by the Planning
Department.
The Arborist Committee is advisory and makes recommendations relating to trees within
subdivisions and landscaping for parks and other public places, for example roadway
rights-of-way. They may nominate exceptional trees for protection. Example is the banyan tree
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in Lahaina. The Board's comprised of nine members and is staffed by the Department of Parks
and Recreation.
The Hana Advisory Committee is also, of course, advisory. All Planning Department
applications located in the Hana Community Plan Region may be referred to that Committee by
the Maui Planning Commission to conduct a public hearing and make a recommendation to the
Commission. The Committee is comprised of seven members who reside in the Hana
Community Plan Region and is staffed by the Planning Department.
The Cultural Resources Commission, or CRC, has final decision-making authority within
Historic Zoning Districts 1, 2, and 3. This includes approval of uses and architectural design.
The CRC also provides advisory comments and recommendations related to cultural resources
for the appropriate planning commissions, other boards and commissions, departments, County
Council, and Mayor. The CRC may also prepare nominations to the Hawaii or National Register
of Historic Places. The committee is comprised of nine Members with disciplines of archeology,
planning, architecture, architectural history, Hawaiian culture, and ethnic history. Additionally,
the CRC is required to have members from the islands of Molokai and Lanai and is staffed by the
Planning Department.
Other Federal, State, and County agencies provide comments to the Department regarding their
specific function. For example, as required by State law, the State Historic Preservation Division
of the Department of Land and Natural Resources provides recommendations on projects which
might impact archeological resources and other historic properties, which can include any
structure over 50 years old.
In our next slide, let's take a look at the principal laws and regulations providing the planning
framework. The Hawaii State Constitution sets forth the structure of governments in the State of
Hawaii. The Constitution, among other things, provides for the workings of both State and
County governments and the enactment of State laws by the Hawaii State Legislature known as
the Hawaii Revised Statutes_ The Hawaii State Planning Act, Chapter 226, HRS, was adopted in
1978 to establish a Statewide planning system. Chapter 226 also provides the enabling
legislation for the Countywide Policy Plan and the respective development or community plans
that we have today. The State Planning Act sets for required plan elements, such as desired
population and physical development patterns, unique problems and needs, land use
transportation systems, implementation priorities, et cetera.
Then Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code entitled County General Plan and Community
Plans establishes the County's process to update the County's General Plan. The County's
General Plan includes the Countywide Policy Plan adopted in 2010 and the nine community
plans, which were adopted following the last broad policy level General Plan from 1990. The
cover the Countywide Policy Plan is shown here along with a map illustrating the division of the
six community plan regions within Maui island. The community plan regions on Maui are
Kihei-Makena, Wailuku-Kahului, Paia-Haiku, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula, West Maui, and Hana.
Lanai and Molokai each have their own individual community plans. Although not listed on the
slide, there is also one for Kahoolawe, but the County lacks real day-to-day authority there.
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The Maui County Charter was amended in 2002 to provide further guidance on the General Plan
update. Additionally, Bill 84, which composes most of the present Chapter 2.8011, was passed by
the Maui County Council to provide further guidance on the current General Plan update process
and clarify the role of the completed documents in the County, in County governance. The
respective planning commissions for the islands of Lanai, Maui, and Molokai conduct public
hearings and then provide recommendations to the County Council for community plan
amendments within the purview of their island.
The State Land Use Commission is the subject of Chapter 205, HAS., more commonly known as
the State Land Use Law. It was adopted in 1961 by Act 187. All lands in the State of Hawaii are
designated into one of four categories for Urban, Agricultural, Rural, and Conservation. These
designations are shown here on the map. The County has jurisdiction over lands located in the
Urban, Agricultural, and Rural districts, but lands located in the State Conservation District are
under the jurisdiction of the State Department of Land and Natural Resources.
There are two types of action that occur under the State Land Use Law. The first is known as a
Land Use District Boundary Amendment, which is the reclassification of land from one district
to another district, for example, Agricultural to Urban. When under 15 acres, the Council must
approve these actions after receiving a recommendation from the respective planning
commission. The second type of action is known as a Special Use Permit and allows for the
establishment of a use that is not permitted within the State Agricultural or/and Rural districts.
This use must be deemed unusual and reasonable based upon the five criteria listed. These are
handled by the planning commissions without the need for Council involvement.
State Land Use District Boundary Amendments greater than 15 acres are processed by the State
Land Use Commission. The Maui Planning Department is a mandatory party to any District
Boundary Amendment involving lands located in Maui County. Land Use Commission Special
Use Permits greater than 15 acres require approval from the State Land Use Commission;
however, the processing is done by the Maui Planning Department. The respective island
planning commission conducts the public hearing and then provides recommendations to the
Land Use Commission.
State Land Use District Boundary Amendments less than 15 acres are processed by the
respective county. The respective planning commission conducts the public hearing and then
provides recommendations to the Maui County Council for District Boundary Amendments
located on the respective islands. Processing of District Boundary Amendments in Maui County
is governed by Chapter 19.68, Maui County Code. Land Use Commission Special Use Permits
less than 15 acres located on the three main islands are acted on by the respective planning
commission after conducting a public hearing.
Zoning. Chapter 46 HAS is the enabling legislation that allows for zoning at the county level.
The chapter also allows for the creation of planning and traffic commissions. Title 19 of the
Maui County Code is the zoning code for Maui.
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There are two parts to Title 19. The first is Article 1, Interim Zoning, which created interim
regulations within, with limited allowed uses pending formal adoption of a comprehensive
zoning ordinance and map. Article 2, Comprehensive Zoning, is much more thorough and
provides for various procedures, permits, and development standards as well as a very broad
range of uses. Kurt Wollenhaupt will go into greater detail on zoning in a few minutes.
Next is the County... excuse me, next is the Coastal Zone Management Program, Chapter 205A,
HRS, which was adopted in 1978. This chapter comprises the laws for the Special Management
Area, Shoreline Setback Area, and the overall Coastal Zone Management Program, and is
supplemented by the Special Management Area Rules and the Shoreline Setback Rules of the
various planning commissions. Jim Buika will cover this section in greater detail later on in this
presentation.
The last major component is Chapter 343, HRS, which is entitled Environmental Impact
Statements. This was adopted in 1974 by Act 246 and provides a means of information
disclosure through a system of environmental reviews that ensures that environmental concerns
are given appropriate consideration in decision making along with economic and technical
considerations. The various planning commissions consider environmental review documents
before they can act upon community plan amendments, shoreline setback approvals, and
sometimes other permits. Ann Cua will cover this section in greater detail later on in this
presentation.
After questions, should you choose to ask them now, I'd, I'll turn it over to Kurt Wollenhaupt
who will cover zoning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Does anyone have any questions at this time?
Note: Pause.

CHAIR CARROLL: If not, proceed.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Good afternoon. My name is Kurt and I am a Planner V with the Planning
Department. And I'll be talking about the labyrinth of Title 19. We're gonna take a look at about
six of the different permits that this commission will most likely see, at least if not directly,
they'll be seeing it indirectly as the Planning Commission does have some power to make fmal
approval on some of the permits.
As you may or may not know, land use in Hawaii continues to probably be the most regulated of
all of the 50 states. And this is probably for good reason, because of the natural resources.
Therefore, it's a mission of this body to really respect the land. The life of the land is
perpetuated in its righteousness, and that's why these different applications have a lot of power to
change zoning, to make conditional permits, to have County Special Use Permits, to develop
planned developments, and to incorporate project districts.
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We're gonna take a quick look at each of these different applications. However, for any
PowerPoint presentation, I think that it's often good just to take a key point with you. And that is
that zoning is really the tool by which we can implement what the community wants, what they
have gone through a very long process to determine their goals and objectives, and what the
General Plan for the entire County of Maui is. So, these zoning applications are tools, and
therefore they can be used in order to really make the voice of the community and the long-range
plan for the entire County of Maui realized on a day-to-day basis.
The first application is a Change of Zoning. This is a powerful tool. If I own a piece of land
that's designated Residential and I think I want to go to a Business designation, I have to reach a
rather high threshold. This starts at the Department level. An application is submitted. The
Planning Commission will hold a public hearing, and they are advisory to the County Council.
The Planning Commission will look at this in a fully noticed public hearing. They'll be looking
at the intentions of this Change of Zoning and importantly... is there congruence with the
community plan? If I have a Residential zone and I wanna go to Business, what does the
community plan say? What has the community said on this subject?
So, this Change of Zoning allows someone to significantly, usually enhance the number of uses
that can be on their property. It's rare that someone wants a down zone. They wanna go from
Commercial to Single-Family Residential. Some people would say that that would lessen the
value, but oftentimes people want to up zone. They wanna go to something more dense. So,
that's why that these Changes in Zoning create a new permanent...that's really key, this is a
permanent change for land uses. And so that needs to be reviewed in context of the community
plan. This is kind of the key point here. They're tools for land use management and it's
permanent. What, what, the Change of Zoning occurs, that's what will be on the books.
We then come to the next permit that this body will see quite frequently, and that's a Conditional
Permit. The key here is that...is the use that someone wants similar? Is it related? Is it
compatible to what's permitted right now in that area? The example right here is that a credit
union was granted a Conditional Permit to convert a single-family residence into a business
within a Single-Family Residential District. So, the Planning Commission, and again in a public
hearing, they look at the community, they look at the specific application, and they ask
themselves, well, is the use that someone wants, is it similar, related, compatible with what's
currently going on in the immediate area. And again, their advisory comes to the County
Council. Right now, one of the largest of the Conditional Permit users is for the transient
vacation rental, the TVR. These are reviewed under this Conditional Permit process.
Again, the key point to take away from that slide is that the Commission, the Council really has
to understand is it similar? Can we say it's related or compatible in order to move this through
the approval process.
The next we're going to look at is the County Special Use Permit. This allows for a specific use
in a particular zoning district. Probably one of the most common would be churches in a
Residential District. A church use is not a pettnitted right as such, but has to go through the
Planning Commission, which is the final authority, to be permitted. Now, why, why would, why
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would we have this? It allows for a bit easier process to get approved, but nevertheless, it allows
people to have a higher degree of review. The Planning Commission can look at well, here's a
church, what about the parking? What about the other factors that might be of concern to the
neighborhood? That's why the Planning Commission does hold a public hearing. These specific
uses are in the Code, and the Planning Commission is the fmal authority.
So, the key point here is we have these special uses, churches, hospitals in certain
neighborhoods, but they need a bit higher level of review, so that's why we go through the
County's Special Use Permit process.
The next is relatively uncommon, which is called the Planned Development process. Again, this
sits with the Planning Commission; however, you of course would know one of our most famous
Planned Developments, which is Puamana over in the Lahaina area. It really allows for a
reduction of minimum lot areas, greater building densities, mixed land uses, to try to encourage a
little bit better design. But the key thing here is that there's a requirement that quite a bit of open
space is maintained. Essentially, it's, it's an overlay over existing zoning approved by the
Planning Commission through a three step process. There's an initial review of a concept. The
applicant will come back with a sketch plan of the development that would include streets and
grading, landscaping, open spaces, and then finally come back through the review of
construction plans. Another one that some of you may know is Napilihau, which is on the West
Maui side, an affordable housing development. That's also one of the other planned
developments.
The take away point here is that there, in an overlay district, Open Space importantly is
maintained. So, any new development at Puamana has to maintain an Open Space requirement,
but it allows for some more creativity, some density bonuses, and that can help the developer to
have some cost mitigation and hopefully maybe enhance some of the design of the community.
Next, we come to the Project District. This really provides for some flexibility and creative
planning through specific land use designations. And this one, this body, and the County Council
will see, somewhat rarely. But a typical Project District will have usually a multiplicity of land
uses, Residential, Commercial, Open Space, Public/Quasi-Public. The example here is the Maui
Lani Land Use Plan. Another one would be Kapalua Makai with the resort area that would cover
Resort uses, Residential uses. It's a rather long process, a three-phase process. A public hearing
by the Planning Commission and actually is held in the respective area, the respective
community plan area, and then that recommendation is brought to the County Council for
creation of an ordinance. The second step is another public hearing by the Planning Commission
in the community plan area, and that really looks at a preliminary site plan. And then finally
phase three requires the approval of the final site plan by the Director for consistency. What's
the take away point from Project Districts is that they are flexible and they are creative. Many
states have these specific plan, perhaps in California, but they, they, they create essentially their
new zoning probably with mixed use development. This is where lots of the bigger projects
would be going so that they can provide a mixture of uses that the public would really want,
enjoy, and it would be profitable for all concerned.
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Now we come to the ever popular bed and breakfast that's been around for a couple of years
here, and it was recently updated to try to streamline the process. It allows for short-term rental
within residences, but it's important to note that the homeowner has to live in the residence_ It's
owner occupied. Can be up to six bedrooms between the two dwellings, and the good thing is
that the Department can approve this in most cases, an administrative approval as long as it's not
in the Ag district. But this allows for an expedient approval. The only time that a public hearing
would be required would be if another B&B is within 500 feet, then we would go to the Planning
Commission for their review. In the Ag district, approval of a B&B is required to have a Special
Use Permit by the Planning Commission.
Take away point here is that the new B&B ordinance has helped to really formalize the approval
process. And the good thing for the residents and homeowners of Maui is that it can be done
administratively.
Now, we're gonna move to the last one we'll talk about here, and that's the Country Town
Business. The focus of this is really to establish standards for businesses in our rural
communities. Those of course everyone's familiar with Makawao Town, Paia Town, Hana
Town, Molokai, and Lanai City. Because these are unique, character of the remote business
districts should be preserved to promote the country town atmosphere. Really, the whole district
is intended to establish development standards for businesses in the rural comnaunities.
Nevertheless, certain applications do have to follow the process for Conditional Permits or
Special Use Permits. And it's important to know that any kind of design review that might be
changed oftentimes has to go the Urban Design Review Board, certainly has to go through our
Department to be reviewed.
That gives an overview of some of the different zoning applications. Again, I think the mission
is, I think, that the State motto of Hawaii in which it says the life of the land is perpetuated in
righteousness, that's really key to the mission of this body, is to respect the land and what the
goals of it are for our community. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Lots of examples from West Maui. That's pretty nice to see we've
got varieties of ways of utilizing your zoning. But I was curious, Project District versus spot
zoning? Is there, what's the difference? Or is there a correlation at all? I...
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Well, I'll talk a little bit about Project District. But I think Ann probably will
be able to.. .the Project District actually requires an ordinance to be adopted...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you talk in the mic?
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MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Ann probably can answer this as she's had more experience here. But the
Project District requires an ordinance to be developed and it really replaces the underlying
zoning that was there. This does become, the ordinance becomes the zoning for that area. Spot
zoning. ..it's not spot zoning. This, this goes through a very rigorous process of development of
an ordinance, Planning Commission meetings in each of the respective community plan regions,
lots of public input, and it usually is done for a rather large amount of land, not just for a one or
two small single-family lot or a small TMK area. I think that might be what, what spot zoning
you're referring to would.. .you have, you have a large Residential tract, and in it you have one
tiny little spot in the middle of all this and they wanna go to Business. And that would have to
go through a Change of Zoning, but I think that the Commission, and if it would get to the
Council, would have some concerns about the use of something very different because that
Change of Zoning is permanent and it's a spot in an otherwise contiguous area. So, I think that
would be.. .try to answer your question on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Like the church on Puunoa Street? That's like Residential and it
became a church? Was that a spot zoning example?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Churches are unique in that they are part of the Special Use Permit. Within
each of the zoning districts, let's take Residential, churches, hospitals, they are allowed as a
special use, but only if they go to the Planning Commission in a public hearing. So, it's a special
use that's given a duration, that's the difference between a zoning change, which is permanent.
So, the special use is good for a period of time. It has been looked at the Planning Commission,
but that, that use can be taken away if their find.. .if, if they find that there's been some
irregularities. Whereas if it's spot zoned Of if it's rezoned, that's forever unless you apply for
another Change of Zoning.
COUNCILMEM13ER COCHRAN: Okay. That was.. .do I have more questions? One more. There's
the issue with the West Maui Hospital, and it moved locations. So, I guess that would be a
zoning change. 'Cause when you said it was permanent when a zoned is changed.. .it's
permanent, I believe. But then you just touched on it that it would take a reapplication.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: I'm going to let our Director field this one.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Council Member. I'm very happy to work with you in specifics on the West
Side...is, you're, you know, you're asking specific questions about particular parcels. We, for the
West Maui Hospital, my Department, I believe it's our Charter that says that the Planning
Director can propose zoning. So, we'll be working to propose, I'm not entirely sure on the entire
background of this, but we will be proposing a Change in Zoning for one property for the
hospital and down zoning for another. And so, as a part of this process, of course, I'm gonna be
coming to see you and find out your concerns and what not.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Not to take it on a more personal level.
MR SPENCE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm looking at Project District approvals, you go
Phase I, Phase II, and Phase...Phase III. When it says departmental approval of final site plan,
am I assuming that the, the project itself is, is basically the.. .for the whole thing, is the site plan
or is this specific areas in the Project District when approval is given?
MS. CUA: Mr. Chair, I could, I could, I could answer that question and will refer back to the slide
again. And I think it's important to go over the three step process. You do see a number of
Project District applications in its very early process because you are the authority to grant
approval of the Project District Phase I process, which is the creation of the, of an ordinance. So,
even though the Planning Commission is required to go out to the community, in that affected
community plan region and hold a public hearing, you are charged with the responsibility of
creating the ordinance. So, that's the first step.
Once you do that, an applicant is able to come in with a site plan, a preliminary site plan for that
entire Project District. And let's just take Maui Lani, for example. A very, very large area, they
got their, their ordinance created many years ago, over 20 years ago. They've had some
amendments to it but, you know, a very old ordinance, one that got approved a long time ago.
And then they came in for a Phase II Project District approval many, many years ago, and then it
kind of sat and there wasn't a whole bunch that happened for, for that, within that Project
District, and I would say within the last, you know, ten years, or maybe even less than that,
things really started happening in Maui Lani. And so, you know, they, they, they came in for an
overall site plan approval, but if they have to have.. .if they want to make changes to some
specifics of that site plan in general areas, then they'll come in and make amendments to the site
plan for that area, and that requires Project District Phase II approval with the Planning
Commission. Again, we go out in the community plan area and the Planning Commission holds
a public hearing there.
Phase HI, that is after they've.., after the Project District has an approved site plan for an entire
area, they're obviously not going to develop the entire thing at one time. So, they usually come
in a very small piece at a time, you know, one residential project. And, and the important thing
to point out is the Project District will almost never be one type of use. It's a mixture of uses
'cause it's supposed to be a community. You have your Residential. You have your Multifamily,
your Business, your Open Space, your parks. And so nobody's going to be able to create that,
and it was never intended for it to be, you know, happening in a year or two. It's usually like 1520 years out. And so they come in one project at a time. Let's say they wanna do, you know,
one single-family subdivision, or one commercial project. So, they'll come in for Phase HT
Project District approval. And at that level, they're required to produce construction drawings.
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So at that level they're, they're at the, the building permit stage already. So, they submit to us
their construction drawings. If we find through the Department that those drawings are
consistent with the preliminary site plan approved by the Planning Commission, then we're able
to grant them Phase III Project District approval. So, there, there is normally many, many
Project District Phase III applications that come to the Plwiring Department for approval for one
particular Project District. Did that answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. You, you did. The other question that I had in regards to
ordinance, if, if there is ordinance that had been amended and, you know, what I'm talking about.
So, the project itself, the Project District itself, must abide to the new ordinance —
MS. CUA: Correct,
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --or the amended ordinance?
MS. CUA: That's correct. If, if you wanna change anything in the ordinance, you have to go back
through a Project District Phase I approval, and that has happened. That has happened. You
have, the Maui Lani Project District is the only Project District that the Council attached a map
to it. Not the easiest way to go for somebody that's trying to do a 20-year plan because things
change, the economy changes. And that, that normally necessitates maybe change in how you do
your land uses. Now, for this particular Project District, and I believe this is the only one, if they
wanna make any changes to that map, if they wanna take a school site and move it somewhere
else, because that map has been attached to the zoning ordinance, they have to come before you.
Whereas most Project Districts, and if you ever are inclined to, you know, release them from that
map, we would be very supportive of that because then it would be consistent with all the other
Project Districts. But normally that kind of flexibility is what this Project District is intended to
be, where, you know, if, if there's a demand to have a school in a particular area, and so, you
know, 20 years ago you didn't envision that. So, maybe you wanna move some of the
Residential where you had a school and you wanna put it somewhere else. If you have.. .if you
don't have a map attached to your zoning, you can do that at the site plan level with the Planning
Commission. If it's attached to your zoning, you have to not only go to the Planning
Commission in the...and have a public hearing in the community plan region, you have to come
up to Council.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Chairman, one more question. When
developers come in for Project Districts, normally or in most cases, we set conditions. Is, is the
Planning Department the Department responsible in regards to all of, you know, the conditions
that are imposed on the project are met?
MS. CUA: Yes. Like, like any other permit, whether you grant a Change in Zoning or a conditional
permit, or whether the Planning Commission grants a Special Use Permit, we have to do
compliance reports. And what the applicant is required to do is for a preliminary compliance
report that normally happens before someone is able to get a building permit. They have to come
in and say how they intend to comply with those conditions. And if there are conditions that, that
need to occur before a building permit, like let's say somebody needs to get a noise permit from
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the Department of Health, well, you need that before you build your building. So, obviously
that's one we have to make sure, did they get a noise permit? If we don't see it attached to their
compliance report, we're not going to approve the compliance report.
And then there's also a fmal compliance report. Before you're able to occupy a building, you
have to submit to the Planning Department a compliance report saying how you have complied
with all of the conditions. And if you have complied with all of them and we see proof of that,
then we're able to approve your final compliance report and you can get a Certificate of
Occupancy.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: What about affordable housing'?
MS. CUA: Okay, affordable housing. A number of your, your Project Districts that you have approved,
especially in absence of having the law, the Council was kind of, as it went along project by
project, was incorporating conditions dealing with affordable housing. You know, obviously we
have a law right now. I believe the way the law is worded is that prior to building permit, you
have to, you have to comply. So, that's, on affordable housing, that's something that Public
Works is usually a bit more responsible for because they have to make sure before they issue any
building permits that the affordable housing has been done.
On Project Districts now, when they're coming in for Phase HI approval and we, we a lot of
ti mes we'll require a compliance report to just kind of see where they're at, they'll give us an
update of, you know, this is what we've done so far. You know, we've done here, we've done
here, here and this is our count right now. And then, we a lot of times send that to the Housing
Division and they verify. So, we work with several departments, when it, you know, when it
comes to affordable housing. It's not just the Planning Department, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ann, for providing us that information. And, I, I
guess where I was coming from is that, you know, we place conditions on, on projects
themselves, but, you know, we've had issues, many issues, in regards to affordable housing.
And, you know, you know, comments have been made that projects have been approved with X
amount of affordable housing and, you know, and the need for housing, when new projects come
in, you know, some of the testifiers that we hear always mention, you know, the approved
numbers of affordable housing, but we don't see it. So, hopefully that, you know, the Planning
Department and the Housing Department become more stringent in, in regards to creating
affordable housing for this County so that we, you know, we, we help our community, the ones
that are looking for housing, always looking for housing. Sometimes, you know, we, we don't
follow up on conditions that we place. So, something that hopefully can be considered by both
departments. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions at this time? If not, Ann, you may proceed.
MS. CUA: Okay, the next person, person presenting regarding our Coastal Zone Management Program
is Jim Buika.
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MR. BUIKA: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Land Use Committee. My name is
Jim Buika, Planner with the Planning Department and the Lead Planner in the Coastal Zone
Management Program. Our environmental group is lead by Jeffrey Dack, who is the
Environmental Section Supervisor. We also have another Planner, Anna Benesovska, who is a
Coastal Zone Management Planner, and also Candace Thackerson, who is fimded through the
Coastal Zone Management Program. And we also are assisted by Tara Owens, who's the Coastal
Hazard Specialist here in Maui with the UH Sea Grant Program that provides us coastal
processes information and also reviews engineering reports, and looks at coastal projects. Also
I'd like to credit our Corporation Counsel, James Giroux, for many of these slides, because I'll,
I'll really be looking at the Coastal Zone Management.. .Management Act, HRS 205, from a
legal aspect, which transitions us into the Special Management Area Rules and the Shoreline
Rules for the three counties [sic] that we have here in Maui. And then I'll have some concluding
remarks.
Just as an intro slide here, back in 19.. .in 2003, we had a Maui Island Shoreline Inventory
completed. Of a total length of the shoreline of about 120 linear miles, the length of our sandy
shoreline was about half of that, 56 miles. The length of the armored shoreline, part of that
56 miles, 16 miles of it, or 28, are armored with revetments and seawalls. We've lost an
additional 5 miles since 1949 of our beaches, and there are roads that are threatened by erosion
right on the shoreline, about 3 miles of that.
So, almost 40 percent of our formerly sandy shoreline has been impaired. So, this is a, you
know, because of coastal erosion, this is an ongoing issue we're dealing with. And besides just
the shoreline itself, we're dealing with impacts on development over time also. This is a recent
emergency permit from the Kahana Sunset AOAO up in Napili Bay where the lanai collapsed in
front of the building threatening life, safety and potential structural collapse. So, we're seeing
this more and more. This is becoming more of an issue with the Coastal Zone Management
Program, how do we deal with developments that are threatened on the coastline.
So, I'll leave it there and just go back really to an overview of the Coastal Zone Management
Act, the Federal law, the State law, how it comes down to our County Charter, and then the
Planning Commission Rules.
The Federal Coastal Zone Management Program was established in 1972 to create coastal zone
management programs in each of the states that develop approved programs, and then the
Federal government kind of stayed out of it and let the state run the day-to-day programs, such as
we have here in Hawaii.
For our islands, the Coastal Zone Management Statute was enacted and codified as HRS 205A in
1977 and approved in 1978, so over 30 years now. It is our State's resource management policy
umbrella. The CZM law manages all of our Hawaiian islands and it manages it through a subset
of areas called the Special Management Area, which has a permit system and our Shoreline
Setback Variance Law that we have in place here in Maui County.
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The Hawaii Coastal Zone Management Program, it encompasses the entire State, including all
marine waters seaward to the extent of the State's police power and management authority. And
the, the Coastal Zone Management Program's policies and objectives, which are administered at
the State by the Office of Planning are applicable throughout the State. And the Coastal Zone
Management Program, it sets forth special control on development within the Special
Management Areas in each of the counties. And those.. in those Special Management Areas, no
development shall be allowed within the county within the Special Management Area without
obtaining a permit in accordance with FIRS 205 A. Obviously that statement itself is very
onerous in that we would probably halt development if everything needed a permit within the
SMA area, so there are a number of exemptions to the SMA permit application. I think there are
16 of them that keep the development process moving. And we look at the.. .so what we are
spending our time focusing on are the.. .potentially the most environmental sensitive projects.
The Hawaii Coastal Zone Management Act, it delegates the authority to administer the SMA
permit system and adopt procedures for issuing the SMA permits to each of the counties. And
throughout our County Charter, the Maui County Charter designates the planning commissions
of Maui, Molokai, Lanai as the authority in all matters relating to the Coastal Zone Management
Law in their respective areas, Section 8-8.4 of the Maui County Charter. So, the SMA permits
are pretty much managed and administered through our...three of our planning commissions as
opposed to the, to the Council here.
So, the purpose and goal of the SMA Rules are really to set our special controls in the SMA
through a permitting process to assure that allowable developments are designed and carried out
in a marmer that is consistent with our State law. And the State law guidelines are through
objectives and policies and the SMA guidelines. And the goal of our Rules here in Maui County
are to further the State policy through this program to preserve, protect, and where possible
restore the natural resources of the coastal zone.
We also have a Shoreline Setback Law that's set by the Coastal Zone Management Act, which
authorizes a Shoreline Setback Law through the Board of Land and Natural Resources. It is the
authority to determine the location of the shoreline through a shoreline certification process, and
that process is important. The shoreline area to define it is important because it distinguishes
between a State jurisdictional boundary and a County jurisdictional boundary. Everything makai
of the shoreline, certified shoreline, is within the state jurisdiction. Everything mauka is county.
And the counties have the authority to establish Shoreline Setback Rules and Procedures for
variances or allowing certain types of activities and structures within a Shoreline Setback Area.
That varies on our three islands anywhere from 25 feet closest to the ocean to a maximum of
150 feet, depending on the size of the coastal lot.
So, our setback objectives are, are, are fairly simplistic, logical here. We want to move things
out of harm's way. We want to eventually plan the obsolescence of structures that are in the
Shoreline Setback. We want to ensure shoreline access for the public and limit the types of
structures and activities in the shoreline area. We hope to avoid situations such as this.
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So, within the planning framework, as Jeffrey had given you the overview, the Coastal Zone
Management Program sits in parallel with the State Planning Act, the Land Use Commission,
and zoning and it is managed by the, the three planning commissions through the Special
Management Area Rules, the Shoreline Rules. Under the SMA Rules, we have major permits,
we have minor permits, exemptions, and we have shoreline setback variances, which the
planning commissions see and determine.
So, looking at the, the Special Management Area boundaries for our three islands, to the south,
we have the yellow-gray-green area. I'm very color blind, but the shaded area there is the
Special Management Area along the coast, Piilani Highway up through South Maui, through
Maalaea. You can see that the SMA area through Olowalu is practically nonexistent. Again, it
follows the highway and up through Lahaina, Kaanapali, Kapalua, Napili there. It, it again is
determined by the boundary. Kahului, the, the North Shore is fairly substantial. But then again,
it is a.. .it was set in 1977-1978 and has not been revised since. So, that is the area where we
have our Special Management Area applications and the CZM Program has its most influence.
And in that Special Management Area, we have for Maui County the Special Management Area
Rules for the Maui Planning Commission and the Shoreline Rules for the Maui Planning
Commission similar for both other islands.
Here's the island of Lanai. You can see just Mande Bay has a little bit. The SMA boundary
encompasses to the far south and you can just see the, the coastal road. There is very little
Special Management Area on Lanai. And I, I personally have never seen a SMA permit from
Lanai. I know we do have them but it's, it's very limited. Again, for Lanai, we have the Special
Management Area Rules for the Lanai Planning Commission and the Shoreline Setback Rules
and Regulations for the Lanai Planning Commission.
On Molokai, you can see the SMA boundary in purple is more substantial on, on the north in the
Kalaupapa region, down to the south the Kaunakakai area, and to the west the Papohaku Dunes
area. There is movement on Molokai to, to alter the SMA boundaries so that might be in front of
us in the next year or two. Again, we have rules, the Special Management Area Rules for
Molokai, the Shoreline Area Rules, and we do have rules of practice and procedure set by the
Coastal Zone Management Act, which are in place for all three of the islands. These
administrative rules are in accordance with HRS 91 and have Notice of Public Hearing and
various public hearings for major SMA projects.
So, the County SMA Rules are required to comply with the objectives and policies of the, of the
CZM Program. All Hawaii agencies, within their rules, are required to comply with these
objectives and policies of the Coastal Zone Management Act. And, so what are these policies
and objectives? There are ten of them.
So, our objective under, under the act is to minimize the impact to our, our, our natural resources
and resources available to the public. These ten listed in the left-hand column, recreational
resources, historic and cultural, scenic and open space, coastal ecosystems, economic uses such
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as Harbor areas, coastal hazards, managing development, public participation, beach protection
and access, and marine resources.
So going through these, the, you know, the first one, recreational, what we wanna do is make
sure our development does continue to provide coastal recreational opportunities accessible to
the public. Our historic and cultural resources must be protected. That's a major one that we
always review, protect, preserve, and restore natural and man-made Hawaiian and American
cultural and historic resources. Third, we attempt to protect, preserve, and restore coastal views,
open space, and scenery as much as possible. Regarding coastal ecosystems, minimize the
impact, adverse impacts, and protect coastal ecosystems. Our economic uses, again we want to
provide and co-locate coastal dependent facilities while minimizing negative impacts. Coastal
hazards, reduce risk to new structures, enhance public safety. Managing development, we're
always attempting to streamline the permitting process and allowing communication and public
participation in our, in our SMA process. Public participation, we are constantly going out to the
public, creating public awareness, education, and participation. We do that through the County
Council, through the commission public hearing process. Beach protection and access, of course
we wanna minimize hardening of the coastline, minimize erosion. And marine resources,
certainly we seek to conserve aquatic natural resources for sustainable development.
So, these are the overarching objectives from the CZM Act that are incorporated into our rules.
And so to summarize, through the SMA Guidelines, which are in the Coastal Zone Management
Act, we are seeking to ensure adequate access to publically owned beaches, recreational areas,
wildlife and natural reserves, adequate and properly located public recreation areas, adequately
control, manage, and minimize impacts from pollution and runoff, minimize the adverse effects
to water resources, scenic resources, and recreational amenities, and minimize risk to proposed
structures from coastal hazards.
So, again, we're seeking to minimize dredging, filling, altering any of the coastal areas. We
don't want to reduce beach size. We seek to minimize impacts to public beach access and coastal
recreation, loss of coastal views, adverse effects to water quality, fisheries, wildlife, and habitat,
and loss of existing and potential agricultural uses.

So the bottom line, to summarize, the Coastal Zone Management Act, through our SMA
Guidelines in the Act and our three planning commission SMA Rules seek to minimize, where
reasonable, adverse impacts to the environment. Obviously every development has some level
of impact on the environment and so it's a balancing act between trying to hone the project,
develop the project in the way that has.. .that minimizes these various impacts under the Coastal
Zone Management Program.
And how do we do that within the Planning Department, I'm not going into any of the nitty
gritty of the permitting process, because that is not part of your responsibilities here. But when
projects do come to the Planning Department, in our SMA Rules, we have a list of 12 criteria that
evaluate a proposed project that coincide with our...those 10 objectives of the Coastal Zone
Management Act. So again, there may be adverse affects that may exist, but they are minimized
in light of compelling public interest, such as public health and safety as well as the economic
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development. And we seek to make sure that every project, proposed activity, is consistent with
these SMA Guidelines under the SMA Law.
So, just in conclusion, we all know, and the reason we're all here is that we love our shoreline,
we love our islands. It provides for tourism, the economy, recreation, fishing and food, cultural
practices, and our quality of life. As I had in the opening slide, our shoreline is threatened with
coastal erosion that is accelerating, so we're aware of that. We're trying to minimize that. Our
shoreline and coastal erosion processes are a system and they need to be...it needs to be studied
and fully understood to make sound, scientifically based planning decisions. Many of our
planning decisions, maybe 30, 40, 50 years ago were not scientifically based. We didn't have as
much information as we do now. So, we are moving forward with more information. And again,
just to repeat in conclusion, the Coastal Zone Management Act, through our SMA Guidelines and
through our SMA Rules for the three planning commissions seek to minimize, where reasonable,
adverse impacts to the environment. So, thank you, and I did put in the, I think I, in, in your
slides I do have one slide of our 12 criteria that we judge projects on, but I'm not gonna go over
that at this point. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions at this time? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes. Mr. Buika, you talk about, in the SMA process, to preserve views.
Now, this is especially important in Kihei. Is that public views or private views? Because if you
have somebody who has a home on one side of the street and wants to build a home on the other
side of the street, anything in Kihei is pretty much in the SMA if it's makai of Piilani Highway.
Does the homeowner in makai of the other house have a duty to preserve the first homeowner's
views or -MR. BUIKA: The...
COUNCILIVLEMBER COUCH: --is it just public views?
MR. BHIKA: The way the Coastal Zone Management Act is written is that we, we attempt to preserve
views of the shoreline from the nearest public highway.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUIKA: So, it would be Piilani Highway. When projects do come along, along the coastline and
are impacting other views, obviously everybody has the right to develop their own piece of
property. We have worked.. .like a lot of times, especially shoreline properties, we internal in the
Planning Department, we attempt to make sure that views are preserved in every which way
possible. And we also reach out to.. .we ask the planners to.. .or, or ask the, the, the applicant,
the homeowner, the developer, to reach out to the neighbors to try to understand their concerns
and to preserve some views. Obviously landscaping can impact it. And along the shorelines
certainly we're doing everything we can to maintain as much view, even a peek-a-boo view
through side setbacks as you go down the highway. You know that, to all of us, that is our, that's
our open space. That's our open field. You go down to Makena and you see these walls. And
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so, I think through probably through the community plan updates also we can have an impact
more than...we don't have those in our, in our rules per se, but it is an impact. It is an
environmental impact, certainly. So, we try to work with applicants as much as possible so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, and you talk.. .thank you for that. And you talk about, on
Molokai, you're looking at moving the SMA boundaries? Is there some discussion of that in, in
especially South Maui as well?
MR. BUIKA: I'm not aware of any discussion in South Maui at this point. It is a discussion with the
Molokai Planning Commission to relook at the SMA boundaries. It certainly is something that,
that we can do. It's...it...and that is, actually the SMA boundary movement is, I think, in the
purview of the, the Council. It would have to be.. .the process would have to come through as an
ordinance through the Council. But obviously there would be a, a process, a community process,
a collaborative process that would take place prior to that involving certainly Council Members
and community members. So, that is...it's something that can be looked at.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, the boundary can be moved by the County, but the dollar
amount that triggers a major versus a minor is set by the State?
MR. BUIKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMI3ER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you_ Anyone else have any questions at this time? If not, thank you.
MR. BUIKA: We'll move on to the next presentation. Tara Miller.
MR. DACK: Owens.
MR. BUIKA: Tara Owens.
MS. OWENS: I'm still confusing people with my name change that just happened in the last year So
thanks, Tim. My name is Tara Owens. Thanks, Members of the Council, for having me today
and thanks to the Planning Department for including me, because I am not one of the Planners. I
technically belong to the University of Hawaii Sea Grant College Program, but I work very, very
closely with the Planners and also with other departments within the County. And I was asked to
talk to you today a little bit about climate change and sea level rise. And I just wanna caveat this
presentation right up front because the term climate change can be loaded and it can mean a lot
of different things to different people. So, I have two goals usually when I go out and talk about
this to groups of people. One is just to, just to not scare anybody but just to talk story about the
issues we might be facing in the future and, and, and hopefully bring that to some
solution-oriented discussions. And then my second goal is just to present information that might
add some context to you when you have to make decisions on certain issues. You might just
think of it as another lens through which you think about the decisions that you're making in the
future.
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So, I thought I might take a quick minute to introduce to the Sea Grant Program so you
understand a little bit better what my role is here with the County. Sea Grant is a program that is
administered through the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. And there's a
nationwide network of 32 programs like ours. And our particular program is, is administered
through UH Manoa. And Sea Grant has four focused areas, sustainable, safe seafood supply,
sustainable coastal development, healthy coastal ecosystems, and hazard resilience in coastal
communities. My focus area is really the last three. And I have colleagues similar to myself on,
on the other islands, also like me, Coastal Hazards Specialists, and they work in a similar
capacity either with the counties or the State. And our role is really just to bring science to
planning and on a lot of the topics that I have listed here, coastal processes, erosion control,
beach and dune management, setbacks, EA and EIS permit reviews, and public outreach. And
we also, by working with the Planners, we can help to expedite permits through consultations,
providing technical guidance on all these issues, and doing site visits. And, and then also we
interface with State and Federal agencies and the general public in our day-to-day activities.
Okay, so, usually when I give these presentations I try to stick to the facts. There's a lot of
debate out here around these issues, but we'll try to stick to some of the facts. And so, what I'm
presenting here is actual data. This.. .these are not model outputs. This is actual information
empirically observed data. So, we know in Hawaii we're observing an air temperature rise,
especially at higher altitudes. Sea level is rising. Rainfall and stream flow is declining. And
rain intensity, though, at the same time is increasing. Sea surface temperatures are rising and the
ocean is, is slowly becoming more acidic. And the, the images you see there are Hanalei Valley
in Kauai in the fall of 2009 after a large rain event.
We know that global temperature is rising. This graph here shows the long-term trend in surface
temperatures since 1880 and that trend is accelerating over time. And in the last 12 months,
we've seen the warmest temperatures on record in the last 130 years. And 2009 was one of the
wannest years we saw on record.
I'm gonna skip this slide. This was an animation, a really cool animation of global surface
temperatures over time but I, I didn't install the animation on this machine so it's not gonna work
here.
COUNCILME1VIBER VICTORINO: Aww.
MS. OWENS: But if, if anybody has interest, I can show it to you later.
We also know that, that tides are rising. So, there are tide stations. The red dots on this map are
the tide stations, tide stations all across the world. And if you look at the global trend, you'll see
that there's been a significant acceleration over the last two decades. So, this
th is the global Sea
Level Rise trend and, and we're observing an acceleration so early in the 20 century, 6 inches
per century, and then since 1990 about 12 to 14 inches per century. And then, in Kahului we see
an increase in Sea Level Rise at, at the tide gauge, which equates to about 9 inches in the last
100 years.
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Okay, so the warming trend that we're seeing relates to Sea Level Rise by raising Sea Level Rise
through two processes, and those are thermal expansion of ocean water and melting of ice.
We've monitored sea surface temperatures over the last couple decades and we're... and
observing.. .observing an acceleration of thermal expansion. And then also we're seeing melting
of the Greenland and Antarctic ice sheets. And this year, actually, it was recently reported that
we've had record melting of the Greenland ice sheet in 2010. Probably the one to most worry
about, though, is the Antarctic ice sheet. And we see that all regions of Antarctica are warming
and we've seen an increased loss of ice in Antarctica over the last ten years. And the story,
though, is more complicated than what we see at the surface. And the surface area measurements
that we have don't really reflect the entire loss in terms of thickness. And there's some places
where the ice is now only a meter thick where it was previously ten meters thick. And Antarctic,
Antarctica in particular, the ice sheet is on bedrock below sea level. So, there are less constraints
on the melting of the Antarctic ice mass than the Greenland ice mass. So, we only have a couple
of decades worth of data, so it'll be interesting to see what happens in the next few decades as
we, as we have more observations.
And this is just a graph of Sea Level Rise since the 1800s. If you look back at historical records,
you know, in the 1800s we were seeing about a three inch per century Sea Level Rise. And that,
you know, at the point where we have an instrumental record, that rate increases to six inches per
century, then a foot per century. And the projections for the future, there's a wide range, but it
seems like about a meter of Sea Level Rise, or three foot per century is a pretty good planning
arget.
And this is just a graphic of a lot of the recent, more recent studies in the last couple of years of
Sea Level Rise predictions. So, if you look at the scale on the Y-axis, that's Sea Level Rise in
centimeters. So, the predictions range anywhere from 25 centimeters up to 200 centimeters,
which is 2 meters, which is about 6 feet. So, about a meter of Sea Level Rise is right there in the
middle of all those projections. So, it seems like a pretty reasonable planning target.
Some states are actually being mandated to look at this. In the State of California, just one
example, their...they've been mandated, all state agencies, to look at what's gonna happen given
a 1.4 meter Sea Level Rise. And so they've created some high-resolution maps for their entire
state and looked at what's at stake in those areas. Critical facilities, how many people are, are in
those areas that might be affected by Sea Level Rise.
And we can and are doing the same here in Maui. The Planning Department has essentially
commissioned Chip Fletcher at the University of Hawaii to produce sea level risk and
vulnerability maps for the island of Maui and this is one of the first examples from the Halama
Street area in Maui. The light green areas are areas that might be impacted by about
25 centimeters, or a quarter of a meter of Sea Level Rise, up to the red areas, which will be the
areas exposed when there's about a one meter Sea Level Rise, or about three feet. So, these are
basically lowlands where the water table is likely to produce flooding and where inflow from the
ocean through tidal ditches will expand wetland areas.
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Okay. So, what are the impacts of Sea Level Rise? Well, coastal erosion will begin to increase,
or accelerate. The water table will rise. We may see some aquifer contamination. New wetlands
will form. Storm drains may begin to back up. Drainage infrastructure may stop working in
low-lying areas and other types of infrastructure failure. So, we might start asking ourselves
questions like should we consider Sea Level Rise when we're siting and engineering new costal
development? Should our major infrastructure be relocated? How will we handle runoff
drainage? And how will rising sea level affect our ground water resources? And how are we
going to manage the beaches? Just decisions we have to make. There are solutions to all these
problems or issues, but it's just something we have to start thinking about as we make decisions
in the future.
From a regulatory perspective, one of the ways we deal with coastal erosion is our erosion-based
setbacks. So, Jim talked a little bit about the setback area under the Coastal Zone Management
Law. We have shoreline erosion rates based on maps provided by UH and those maps are in the
process of being updated right now to include more recent shorelines. And, you know, we know,
we know things are gonna happen and we just have to decide how to respond to them in the
future. This is one example where when you stabilize or harden the shoreline, you, you preserve
the land but you more than likely will lose the beach, whereas if you don't stabilize the shoreline,
you have the option of, of preserving the beach. For some locations, adaptation measures such
as hardening the shoreline may be appropriate. So, I don't wanna imply that seawalls are always
a bad thing. These are case specific things we need to look at. But it's something we might start
to think about in terms of prioritizing areas that are still pristine and where we absolutely may
not want to allow shoreline hardening.
Jim talked about Kahana Sunset. So, this is an area, just one example of an area where there's
been increased erosion and, and we're observing the impacts of that now. So, the beach in 1949,
the beach today, we're looking at the condo complex right there where the arrow is, and this is
the area that Jim showed where we saw...observed collapse of the, of the lanai due to coastal
erosion and shoreline hardening.
The causes of erosion, seasonal wave conditions, human impacts to sand supply, so when we
i mpound sand by the use of sea walls or revetments, and Sea Level Rise. You know, seasonal
wave conditions are something that we, we experience major fluctuations of the beach from
season to season here in our Hawaiian beaches. So, that may not be something that we always
have to respond to. But we may have to respond to increased coastal erosion in the future due to
human impacts to sand supply and Sea Level Rise. And our options range anywhere from doing
nothing, allowing development to essentially fall into the ocean, or hard stabilization on the other
end of the spectrum, and then a lot of things in between. Managed retreat, you might consider
our, our current setback policy based on erosion rates as one example of managed retreat.
There's dune restoration, beach replenishment, and temporary erosion control as well.
Other impacts of Sea Level Rise, coral reef degradation. Reefs get stressed for two reasons,
increases in temperature and increased sedimentation. This is an example in Kaunakakai.
There's been a recent study that showed with Sea Level Rise, there's gonna be an increase in
suspended sediment, and that has potential impacts on the health of the reef.
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I mentioned drainage failures. And this is, this is an image from the recent Kihei flooding event
on January.. .taken on January 13, 2011. This is nobody's fault, this situation, but it is an
example of what we may be facing in the future. Events like this may be more frequent. So, we
just might wanna start to think about how we're gonna deal with these kinds of situations.
Similar, critical infrastructure. We know there was an article in the paper today about the options
for the Wastewater Treatment Facility. One of the options on the table is to armor, another option
on the table is to relocate. Both of those are legitimate options and we may consider even both
of those options. But again, these are just decisions that are gonna come up more frequently, and
the, the hard decisions that we all have to make together.
And this is just my last slide just to summarize. In terms of managing the risk related to climate
and Sea Level Rise, certainly we can expand our, our education efforts. I think that's one of the
things we're doing here now. Continue monitoring advances in the science. That's one of my
roles, just to make sure I stay on top of new data and make sure that it's understood and, and
known. Look at...define the problem locally. Deal with this at a community level. You know,
that's what we're doing with, with regards to some of these bigger issues like drainage and
infrastructure. Gather data and tools, again, we're, we're on that path as well. We're getting new
erosion maps, we're getting new Sea Level Rise maps. And just look at all the alternative
strategies, look at all the options, and, and make the best decisions that we can moving forward.
Thank you. Any questions?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And thank you for the presentation. 1... it's very
enlightening and, and somewhat disheartening to understand what is occurring around us, and
some of this we have very little control on. My question is what is the Department's take on we
can stop and we have setbacks now, but many properties that were built a long time ago, even
just the last 10, 15 years have built much too close to the shoreline and we're seeing the residual
effect. What is the plan, if we do have any kind of plan, to assist and, and do what we can to
prevent any more changes in the, the shoreline?
MS. OWENS: Sure. I'm not gonna answer that question for the County. So, I'm gonna let Will take
this one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Will will take it. Well, thank you for your presentation. I
appreciate that.
MS. OWENS: Thank you.
MR. SPENCE: And thank you, Tara. That was, that was very impressive. Okay, as.. .Councilman
Victorino, as I understand the question, what are we doing to prevent structures going so close to
the shoreline or...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Well, they're there now, so what do we do with those that are there
and also making sure nothing else gets there?
MR. SPENCE: Okay. It's complicated answer for a complicated question. We look on a case-by-ease
basis at the particular area, like for instance along the northern part of Front Street. It's mostly
all armored already. So, you know, there's not like a whole lot of beach you're gonna be losing
so some homes can go in there or homes can get rebuilt. The, you know, but in.. .like Jim was
saying, Jim Buika was saying, we have some beaches that are pretty pristine, you know, where
you don't... once you start hardening the shoreline, you start having erosion problems like you
saw on that one slide. If we have an opportunity, if somebody wants to build a home on an
oceanside, ocean front lot, we may require that they set that, that house pretty far back to allow
for the retreat of the shoreline. So we're not, one, we're not interfering with the coastal
processes where the, you know, sand excretes and retreats and all that, but as the shoreline
does...it...as it does erode, you know, that house is not in danger for quite a long time, we figure,
what is it, Jim, a 50 year? We, we look at a 50 year erosion rate. So, if you set the house back
far enough for that 50 years, it's more or less, you know, a usable time frame for the house, you
know, that house will not be in danger for a long time. But like I said, you can set 'ern closer if
the shoreline is already hardened. It's...so, it really depends on the area of the island, actually of
all the islands.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. And I, I guess there's not much we can say and
do until these things come up. But I think it's very apparent to most of us that the way we used
to do shoreline development can no longer exist. And not only with setbacks but even planning
even further out -MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --where we're not looking at just 50 years, maybe 100 years and
what erosion and as well as rising sea tides will, you know -MR. SPENCE: Yes. It's a...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- units.
MR. SPENCE: It's a very complex issue and I'm glad that I have staff that. ..I mean this is what they
spend their time doing, looking at the various parts of the island and how those particular areas
are changing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Spence.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Vietolino. Any further questions at this time? Has the
Department finished their presentation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Get one more.
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MS. CUA: We're in the home stretch. We have two more presenters. I don't know if you want us to
proceed, you wanna take a break.
CHAIR CARROLL: We're going to take a ten minute break. We're going to break for ten minutes. We
will meet back here at 3:15. We are in recess. . .. (gavel) . . .
RECESS:

3:04 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:16 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel) . . . This Land Use meeting of February 2, 2011 is now back in
session. Ms. Cua?
MS. CUA: Thank you, Chair. We just have two presenters left, and so we, we...again, we just wanna
really thank you. We're just so happy that all of you are here to be able to hear this. It just
makes our job easier, 'cause I know you get a lot of calls from the public. And even though we
know this is extremely overwhelming, some of the information that's coming to you, but at least
you're hearing it. And, you know, if you get a call, you may not know the exact answer, but
you're gonna go wait a minute, I remember the Planning Department talking about that so, I'll
call them and see and then I can get back to my constituent. So, the fact that you're all here, we
really appreciate, 'cause that just shows us that you, you know, you really care about what we do
and that you're gonna be able to pass that on when your, your constituents call you.
So, I'm gonna be talking today about the Environmental Assessment process and the
Environmental Impact Statements. Chapter 343 of Hawaii Revised Statutes was adopted in
1974, and it's the, it's the statutory basis for developing and processing of Environmental
Assessments and Environmental Impact Statements, which will be referred to as EA and EIS's in
my presentation.
Many development projects require the preparation of an Environmental Assessment or an
Environmental Impact Statement. And before these development projects are approved,
consideration must be given to environmental, social, and economic consequences. The
Chapter 343 process assures the public the right to participate. The agency charged with
administering Chapter 343 is the Office of Environmental Quality Control, and publications of
EA's and EIS...EIS's are found in the Environmental Notice.
So how does Chapter 343 apply to projects? Well, first of all, it's very important to note that not
all projects require an Environmental Assessment or, or an EIS. The law has established nine
triggers, which require compliance to Chapter 343, and in a few minutes we'll go over all of
these triggers. These triggers apply to two types of actions, those by an agency or those
proposed by a private applicant. There are also ten exemption classes. The exemptions are
actions with minimal or no significant effect on the environment, and the County of Maui has
compiled a list of exemptions for all departments, and the most recent version was adopted by
the Environmental Council in January of 2007.
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So, as I mentioned earlier, there are nine triggers which require compliance with Chapter 343,
and they are...Fm, I'm not gonna go through all of them. We use the first four bullets for the
most part. Use of State or County lands or funds, use within the shoreline area, use within
historic sites as designated in the National or Hawaii Register, and amendments to the General
Plan. But there are other triggers as well. Being aware of these nine triggers is important
because, as I mentioned, there are applications that do not trigger compliance with Chapter 343.
And sometimes the Council does ask us, you know, when, when you have a project in front of
you, well, why did this project not get an EA or an EIS?
And so if you just look at this list and we'll just take a really quick example. If somebody came
to the Planning Department for just a Change in Zoning application. So, let's say the community
plan designated the use that they needed, but they just needed to change the zoning, a changing, a
changing of zoning in and of itself is not a trigger for the preparation of an Environmental
Assessment or an Environmental Impact Statement. Now, if they needed to amend the
community plan, which a lot of times what you do see is consolidation applications. You may
see a Community Plan Amendment, Change in Zoning, and a Project District application. Well,
the amendment of the community plan is a trigger and it's the fourth bullet point, amendment of
any County General Plan. That is a trigger. So that's, you know, probably the most important
thing I want you to take away from this presentation, that not everything does require an EA or
EIS. These are the triggers.
Chapter 343 process begins with pre-consultation activities. Prior to preparing a draft EA, it is
i mportant to consult with governmental agencies and the community regarding a proposed
activity. In the pre-consultation activity, the scope of development is detailed and potential
i mpacts are identified. In the pre-consultation, or if in the pre-consultation no significant impacts
are anticipated, a draft EA is prepared. An EA is an informational document that evaluates
whether an action may have a significant environmental effect. The draft EA, which includes
anticipated impacts, is filed with OEQC and they in turn publish the notice of the draft EA and a
30 day public comment period then begins. All comments received during the comment period
are responded to by the applicant and both the comment letters and the applicant or agency
responses are included in the final EA document. If the final EA anticipates no significant
i mpacts, a FONSI, or a Finding of No Significant Impact, is made. The FONSI determination is
filed with the Office of Environmental Quality Control and a 30 day challenge period begins.
Once the 30 day challenge period ends, the permit process can continue.
If through the pre-consultation process significant impacts are anticipated, an Environmental
Impact Statement is prepared. An EIS assesses the proposed project through research,
discussion, and review. It must at a minimum identify environmental concerns, obtain various
relevant data, conduct necessary studies, receive public input, evaluate alternatives, and propose
measures for minimizing adverse impacts.
So, the first step in the preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement is the preparation of an
EIS Prep Notice. An EIS Prep Notice is issued and a 30 day public comment period begins. A
draft EIS is then prepared and filed with OEQC, and OEQC publishes the notice of the draft EIS.
Once filed, a 45 day public comment period begins. All comments received during the comment
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to by the applicant and both the comment letters and applicant or agency
responses are included in the fmal Environmental Impact Statement Document. That document
is then filed with the Office of Environmental Quality Control, and if acceptable, a 60 day
challenge period then begins. Once the 60 day challenge period is complete and no appeal has
been filed, permit processing can then continue. If the final EIS is not acceptable, there is a
60 day window whereby an appeal may be filed.
period are responded

So, EA's and EIS's are very similar in structure as I, I just pointed out; however, the EIS is a
much more detailed disclosure document including a detailed analysis of alternatives and
mitigation, mitigative measures. Both documents must address impacts on the surrounding
environment caused by a proposed development. Both documents must also consider mitigative
measures, which are actions used to prevent, lessen, or counteract potential impacts. Both EA's
and EIS's must identify alternatives. And this is a very, very important part of the process, and
we'll go over, we'll go over that in a little bit more detail.
So in the photos to the right, we see examples of what impacts development may have on
wildlife and the environment. The top photo shows potential, potential to sea life with
man-made debris, and the bottom photo shows the impacts of sedimentation on coastal waters
with inadequate land management methods.
An Environmental Assessment must consider every phase of the proposed action. It must also
consider all types of impacts, and there are four basic types of impacts involved. First is primary
and secondary impacts, regional and site specific impacts, cumulative impacts, and short-term
and long-term impacts. And I'm gonna discuss these in detail a little bit later. So, in order to
determine whether a proposed action will have an impact on the environment, potential impacts
are evaluated in relation to significance criteria.
The first impact we will discuss are primary and secondary impacts. Primary impacts are effects
caused by the proposed action and occur at the same time and place. This slides illustrates that
construction of a proposed subdivision in the middle of forested lands may have a primary
i mpact on wildlife in the area. Secondary impacts are effects caused by the proposed action and
are, and are at a later time or farther removed in distance but still reasonably foreseeable. This
parking lot shows a secondary impact associated with the construction of, of a parking lot. A
parking lot may increase the potential for petroleum residue in storm water runoff, which could
ultimately affect shoreline and marine resources.
Other impacts caused by development include regional and site specific impacts. Regional
i mpacts are, are effects caused by the proposed action on a larger scale regional basis as you see
in this photograph here. Site specific impacts are effects caused by the proposed action in a
localized smaller area. Reviewing a particular proposed action relative to the regional or site
specific impacts will oftentimes depend on the types of proposed action and will also be
determined by experience.
Primary, secondary, cumulative, regional, and site specific impacts can have both short-term and
long-term effects as most of you know. Short-term impacts occur immediately and long-term
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impacts occur over a given period of time. This slide shows an example of a new golf course. A
primary impact of the golf course would be the impact on water usage. The short-term impact is
water usage during construction whereas the long-term impact is water usage for continued
maintenance.
Cumulative impact is, is one that we struggle with all the time, and it's the impact of the
environment resulting from incremental impact of the action when added to other past, present,
and reasonable foreseeable future actions regardless of what agency or person undertakes such
other actions. And a direet...and our example of a direct cumulative impact is traffic, which will
deal with every day.
When reviewing the potential impacts of a proposed action, an action may have a significant
impact on the environment if it meets any of the following significance criteria. And I'm gonna
go through these with you. The first is... involves an irrevocable commitment to loss or
destruction of any natural or cultural resource. Second, curtails the range of beneficial uses of
the environment, conflicts with the State's long-term environmental policies or goals and
guidelines, substantially affects the economic or social welfare of the community or State,
substantially affects public health, involves substantial secondary impacts, such as population
changes or effects on public facilities, involves a substantial degradation of environmental
quality, is individually limited but cumulatively has considerable affect upon the environment or
involves a commitment for larger actions, substantially affects a rare, threatened, or endangered
species or its habitat, detrimentally affects air or water quality or ambient noise levels, affects or
is likely to suffer damage by being located in an environmentally sensitive area, substantially
affects scenic vistas and view planes identified in County or State plans or studies, or requires
substantial energy consumption.
In the significance criteria that we just reviewed, we noticed that most of the criteria is qualified
as a significant effect if the action involves the following key words, and you heard this kind of
over and over again, irrevocable, destruction, conflicts, substantial, considerable, detrimental.
The question then becomes, how do you measure substantial or detrimental? In some cases, an
impact can be quantified numerically, such as air quality measured in parts per million, traffic
measured by level of service, and noise measured by decibels. There are also areas that are not
so easily quantified and may have to be reviewed on a ease-by-case basis, qualitative. For an
example, the view corridors of our ocean or mountain vistas, in this situation and considering the
immediate surroundings of a proposed action, it may be desirable to re-site a building or to
reduce the height of a multistory structure so as to create or preserve a view corridor.
Mitigative measures, as I mentioned, this is, this is a very, very important part of an EA or an EIS
document and one that I know the Planning Commission, as the accepting authority, looks very
heavily on. So mitigative measures are measures planned to prevent, lessen, or counteract
potential impacts. There may be one mitigative measure, a series of measures, such as best
management practices for erosion control, turn lanes for level of service, or preservation plans
that could be used or applied in order to counteract a potential impact. Often, mitigative
measures are identified by agency comments, such as an installation of a traffic light or a turning
lane or BMP's to reduce runoff or a preservation plan to protect historic resources. A lot of times
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these come from our agencies when we circulate an application to them for their review.
Mitigative measures can often present a potential impact from qualifying as a significant impact.
This could be sufficient enough so as not requiring the preparation of an Environmental Impact
Statement because the proposed mitigative measure has reduced the level of significance.
Now, Alternative Analysis, as I mentioned earlier EA's and EIS's must contain an analysis of the
different alternatives. Each alternative should provide a summary of potential impacts and any
mitigative measures proposed to lessen the impacts. An Alternative Analysis should include
input from the community. Oftentimes, the community members may be aware of concerns and
impacts that make a particular alternative more or less desirable. An alternative, an Alternatives
Analysis can also identify beneficial uses of the property not originally considered. For example
redesigning a site plan to preserve or lessen impacts on our scenic vistas. The preferred
alternative should be the alternative with the least detrimental effect on the environment. But
this, we know, is not always the case. When identifying and discussing alternative methods for a
proposed action, one should consider these four things, different site or location, less density or
intensity, redesigning a project, or finally an alternative is really to have no action although that
is usually the most unpopular alternative.
So, that basically concludes my presentation. I'll take any questions at this time on the EA or
EIS process. If not, I would like to...

COUNCELMEMBER COCHRAN:

Ann?

MS. CUA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. Ann?
MS. CUA: Yes? Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The, what was the LOS.. .level of service?
MS. CUA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Turn lanes? What does that mean? What...
MS. CUA: What we were discussing was mitigative measures that can be imposed on a project through,
though conditions or made part of a project to help reduce the impact of a particular project. Or
are you asking what LOS means?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

Yeah. Just level of service? I don't quite get level of services --

MS. CUA: That's usually related...

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --

out of a...
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MS. CUA: Yeah. That's usually related to traffic. And each road, there's a, there's way where you can
measure how much traffic is at that roadway and the traffic engineers will refer to it as level of
service. So, if you have a roadway that is at a level of service A, then there's, there's really not
much traffic there, and so that area can grow and can handle a lot more traffic. But if you have
an area, like an intersection that is at a level of service F, it's beyond capacity. You need to do
additional improvements there. That's kind of it in a nutshell.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any other questions? Thank you, Ann.
MS. CUA: Okay. So at this point, I'll turn it over to Danny Dias, and he'll be taking you through the
last part of our presentation, which is taking an application from when it gets into our
Department to until it gets to you for your action.
MR. DIAS: Thanks, Ann. Good afternoon, Council Members. My name is Danny Dias, Planner in the
Planning Department. Earlier today, Kurt covered all the permits processed by the Planning
Department and which body is the decision-making authority for each permit. In my
presentation, I'll focus on the permits that are referred by the Planning Commission or Planning
Department to the Council for your review and action.
The County Council is the approving authority for the following permits; District Boundary
Amendments, Community Plan Amendments, Changes in Zoning, Project District Phase I
Applications, and Conditional Permits. To further expand on this, with respect to District
Boundary Amendments, the County Council is the approving authority for lands that are 15 acres
or less in size and are classified as Agricultural, Rural, or Urban. For lands that are greater than
15 acres, the State Land Use Commission becomes the approving authority.
Once you receive the recommendation on the District Boundary Amendment from the Planning
Commission, the Council may adopt the fmdings and recommendations in whole or in part. At
the Council's discretion you may hold further hearings and take further evidence and/or
testimony before taking final action on the application, and the Council may impose conditions
on the District Boundary Amendment if you find them to be necessary.
Second, we have Community Plan Amendments. And those, the procedure for Community Plan
Amendments are set forth in Section 19.510 of the Maui County Code. A Community Plan
Amendment is a trigger for an Environmental Assessment or Environmental Impact Statement as
Ann just went over. It's important to note that there is no mechanism to place conditions on
Community Plan Amendments and in general, Community Plan Amendments are usually
accompanied by a Change in Zoning and conditions are generally placed on the Change in
Zoning.
With respect to Changes in Zoning, they're also processed pursuant to Chapter 19.510 of the
Maui County Code. As I mentioned, the Council may impose conditions on them if the Council
finds them necessary to prevent circumstances which may be adverse to the public health, safety,
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convenience, and welfare. It's important to note that if 40 percent or more of owners or lessees
within a 500 foot distance from the boundaries of the subject parcel have filed written protests
against the project, the ordinance to approve a Change in Zoning cannot become effective unless
it is approved by a vote of seven Members of the Council. And that's otherwise known as a
supermajority vote.
Moving along to Project District Phase I Applications. We discussed this earlier, but generally
Project Districts are created to provide for a flexible design approach rather than specific land
use designations. When a Project District Application is received by the Planning Department, a
draft ordinance is included, which outlines the land uses and standards for the proposed Project
District. The Planning Department reviews the ordinance and normally makes modifications.
The ordinance is then transmitted to the Office of the Corporation Counsel for review prior to the
public hearing with the Planning Commission. The ordinance is then transmitted to the Council
as part of the overall package from the Department, and the Council may approve the ordinance
as is or make modifications as you see fit.
Lastly, we have Conditional Permits. And the intent of the Conditional Permit is to provide the
opportunity to consider establishing uses not specifically permitted under a given zoning district
where the proposed uses is similar, related, or compatible to those permitted uses within the
district. And Conditional Permits are granted by the Council through an ordinance.
In reviewing these permits, most of you are aware that oftentimes a number of these applications
are processed concurrently with each other. Chapter 19.510.010 provides for the processing of
consolidated applications. And an example of this would be if the Planning Department received
an application for a Community Plan Amendment, District Boundary Amendment, and Change
in Zoning for a particular project. The Council would be the final authority for all three of these
applications, and in a case like this, the Planning Department would process all of these three
applications simultaneously. We would write one report and the Planning Commission would
hold one public hearing for, for the item.
At this point. I'd like to take you through the various steps of a typical application that we
process and what it goes through before it fmally gets transmitted to the Council. Once an
application is received by the Department, it's assigned to a planner. The planner reviews the
application for content pursuant to applicable laws and determines if the documents submitted
contain all the necessary information for processing. If all necessary information is provided, the
application is deemed acceptable and the application is transmitted to governmental agencies for
review and comments. If the application is deemed not acceptable, such as documents are
missing or required information is not provided, the Planner writes a letter to the applicant
stating any deficiencies and gives the applicant a deadline to resolve those deficiencies. If the
applicant is able to resolve the deficiencies, the Planner accepts the application and transmit it to
governmental agencies for review and comment.
It's important to note, the Department may also request comments from various boards and
commissions, such as the Urban Design Review Board, Cultural Resources Commission, or the
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Arborist Committee. And if the deficiencies were not able to be resolved, the application is
either returned by the Department or withdrawn by the applicant.
Each agency is given 30 days to comment on a project application. Once all pertinent agency
comments have been received, the Department determines whether all agency issues have been
addressed and resolved. If they have been, the application is deemed complete and the project is
scheduled for public hearing. If there are agency concerns that need to be resolved, the applicant
works directly with the respective agency and notifies the Department when issues have been
resolved. If agency concerns cannot be resolved, the applications are usually withdrawn by the
applicant or returned to the applicant by the Department. And once all issues have been
resolved, the application is deemed complete and the project is scheduled for public hearing.
When a project is scheduled for public hearing, the Department prepares a public hearing notice
and sends it to the applicant 45 days prior to the public hearing. The applicant mails out a Notice
of Hearing letter along with a location map at least 30 days prior to the hearing to landowners
and lessees within a 500 foot radius of the project site. In addition, the applicant also publishes
the same notice in the newspaper once a week for at least three consecutive weeks. The Planning
Department publishes a Notice of Hearing in The Maui News or if it's a Molokai project in the
Molokai paper at least 30 days prior to the public hearing.
The Planner then prepares a report, which outlines the facts of the application along with an
analysis of the project based on criteria for granting of the permit. The Department also prepares
a recommendation on the applications. It should be noted that this is the report and
recommendation that the Council receives as part of the transmittal packet submitted by the
Planning Department to the Council. The respective planning commission conducts the public
hearing on the application. The commission then makes a recommendation to the Council. If
the commission recommends approval of the application, now land use maps are prepared and
the Office of the Corporation Counsel prepares land use ordinances. Once the maps and
ordinances are received by the Planning Department, they are transmitted to the Council through
the Mayor 90 to 100 days from the date the Planning Department certifies the application to be
complete. Transmitted to the Council are the land use ordinances and maps, the Department's
report, recommendation, transcripts of the public hearing, letters received at or after the public
hearing that were not included as exhibits in the Department's report, the application forms, and
any other information the Department deems necessary for the Council to consider in its
deliberations. • If the commission recommends denial of an application, it is sent directly to the
Council for appropriate action. At that point, the Council and Land Use Committee review
process begins.
For our last slide, applications requiring a public hearing contain a number of specific matters
that must be addressed, and those matters are the General Plan, Community Plan, zoning, land
use history of a parcel, archeological and historic issues, secondary impacts, traffic impacts,
water source supply and distribution, sewage disposal, solid waste disposal, environmental
issues, topographic issues, community meetings, development schedule, traditional beach and
mountain access trails, and chemicals and fertilizers and their impacts.
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And that concludes our presentation. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Cua, does that conclude your presentation?
MS. CUA: Yes, Chair, it does.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. One moment...Mr. Couch, you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have a question for Mr. Dias. On the 30 day review, where you're
talking about, in the Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning, 30 day agency review,
is that where most of this stuff gets bottled up? 'Cause I've, I've experienced where agencies
don't review in 30 days but the Department still hangs on to the application until they do get a
review and sometimes it's a year later.
MR. DIAS: Thanks. I think there's, there's two areas where things sort of bottleneck and one is getting
an application ready for transmittal to agencies. Oftentimes when applicants submit applications,
they're, they're not ready and we need more information or revised information and so forth.
And sometimes that can take months for them to get us an application that we feel comfortable
transmitting.
And then second would be, would be the bottleneck with agencies. We do give agencies
30 days, but realistically certain agencies, you know, being as busy as they are, 30 days is, is sort
of unrealistic, or at least it, it has been in the past. And some of these agencies, because of the
issue that they review or, or the items that they comment on, you know, we will give them more
time just because it, it would be premature to, to schedule something without their comments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's just more of a guideline then? A wish list, if you will?
MR. DIAS: Correct. In a perfect world, yeah, 30 days, but...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In the same line of question, from the time you
guys have the paperwork from whoever wants to develop and iron out all of the things that need
to be corrected, what is the average timeframe in most cases?
MR. DIAS: That's, that's really hard to say.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the reason why I ask that question is that, you know,
people, developers, they kind of criticize the County for not working on their projects, and if
they are the culprits, then we should tell 'em so. You know, not blaming the County or, or the
Department for some of their deficiencies. You know, we hear one side, but we never hear your
side. So, now is your time.
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Chairman, can I comment?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. SPENCE: Councilman Pontanilla, that's...what takes so long is, it can be as varied as, as many
applications as we have. The, as noted, some of the, some of the different agencies take a long
time, particularly the agencies we have no control of are the State agencies. You know, we send
stuff to Historic Preservation. They are really underfunded, understaffed. So, review takes a
long time. Other agencies, you know, are right on it. Sometimes we get, we get comments back
from agencies that require a response from the applicant. As a former consultant, I can tell you
sometimes consultants are slow in getting the responses back, you know, to, to deal with those
comments from the agencies. The Water Department may say provide us with all this
information. Well, we may have to go hire an engineer to provide that information and, you
know, that engineer may be backed up, et cetera, et cetera. So, it takes, you know, quite a while.
Some, some applicants plain don't wanna deal with those agency comments. So, you know, then
they wonder well why is my applications, you know, taking so long. Well, they haven't provided
the information. So, there's a lot of different reasons why things take as long as they do. You
know, so, I mean certainly, we're working on our end. And with...I, I think we're gonna see
some speeding up of times with...certainly with interagency comments now with the new
directors and whatnot. We'll see a lot of that.. .those time things resolved at least on that portion
that's under our control.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And thank you for your response. You know, I
think as a County the different departments, you know, we're well aware of the comments that
are being made out there, and I'm sure, you know, we try to accommodate their, their
development or project as soon as we can. But if we don't have jurisdiction, like say the State,
then they should be on the other side of the spectrum advocating the State Administration to, to
look at this delay that they, they've been receiving.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And, you know, by communicating the delays.. .because I hate
for the County to get the brunt of the, the criticism all the time. And it's not fair for the
departments, it's not fair for us, it's not fair for the developer.
MR. SPENCE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: But if they can help out on their side providing you information
on a more timely basis and our departments, I'm sure, you know, everybody got the word that we
should be reviewing this.. .the projects on a more timely manner. You know, those are the things
that we can control. But the ones that we cannot control, we need to make them aware of that so
that, you know, we, we don't have this finger pointing all the time.
MR. SPENCE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So.
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MR. SPENCE: And, Mr. Chairman, if I could comment one, one more thing. The process is the same
for the, particularly for the permits and legislative actions that come to this, to this Committee
and then ultimately for the...to the Council for passing of an ordinance. The process is the same
for whether it's some small project, you know, that a small individual landowner may want to
undertake, or whether it's, you know, one of our larger landowners. So, the, you know, all the
permitting requirements you've saw are the same. The agency comments are the same. And,
you know, it takes a long time particularly for the small landowner because they may not have
the financial means and the.. .be able to pay the consultants and, you know, the engineers and all
those things. It's a very difficult process particularly for the small owner.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Will, for your comment. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Along those same lines then, what about...I guess, that we're,
we're.. .we used to get hung up, and I think it still is happening, is that the State agencies, they
just don't have time. Is that a requirement that they do respond or can we give them a 45 day or
60 day time? And if they don't, if they don't respond, then that's their tough luck. We gotta
move the process on. Is that something that we can codify in an ordinance or is that just a policy
you're using right now?
MR. SPENCE: It's, it's as.. .1 wish it were that simple. When you have an applicant who wants to do a
subdivision on a sand dune and there's probably burials in that sand dune -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter) . . .
MR. SPENCE: --and SHPD can't get to the review, the Archeological Inventory Survey, you know,
that's a, that's a key piece of information. Are there impacts to archeological, you know,
resources or not? We, you know, we really need their input to be able to go to public hearing.
So, I wish... in, maybe in some cases we can put deadlines in our ordinances, but other things,
you know, we cannot. We'll be, we'll be looking at all that stuff and we'll be proposing some
changes to processing permits.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. White'?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Director Spence, one of the questions I have is whether or not there's any way
to limit the scope of an Environmental Assessment for, for certain facilities? The reason, the
reason I ask this question is that we just received the Environmental Assessment for the Haiku
Fire Station. I wasn't struck by the need for the assessment, I was struck by the assessment
being 490 pages long. And I, I, concerned because that's a whole lot of time and energy
put into something that I would hope is absolutely necessary for you guys to process. And I
would hope that if there was some way to limit the scope for something like a fire station...I
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realize agencies have to go through the process as well...but is there any way that the scope of
what is necessary in an Environmental Assessment can be adjusted based on what it's for or
where it's going?
MR. SPENCE: Environmental Assessments are required by State law. So the...so what goes into those
documents is...well there's, there's...I would like to think that, you know, the certain issues for
say the Haiku Fire Station would be limited to these things that are, you know, would be more
common sense. But the, the requirements of State law require that you examine certain things.
But also the case law that has come down through various things, you know, the courts will
dictate that certain levels of analysis be provided. So then, the documents, you know. I mean
there, there may be no impacts associated with.. .1 don't know what for that particular site. But,
you know, you still gotta evaluate that anyway. So, it gets bigger and bigger and thicket
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. One of the things they had to evaluate was the fire protection —
MR. SPENCE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --in the area.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter) . . .
MR. SPENCE: Ann, you wanna comment on this?
CHAIR CARROLL: One moment.
MS. CUA: Well...
CHAIR CARROLL: Ann?
MS. CUA: Chair?
. . . END OF PRESENTATION . . .
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we're gonna take a 90 second recess and put up the screen and I'll be
going back up to the podium. So, we're taking a recess for 90 seconds. . . . (gavel)
RECESS:

3:57 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:59 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . (gavel) . . . Land Use Committee meeting of February 2, 2011 is now back in
session. Ms. Cua, if you would care to come over here?
MS. CUA: I'm sorry. What, what was the particular question again? I can't remember.
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MR. SPENCE: On limiting the scope of...
MS. CUA: Oh. You know the.. .in terms of us just, just being able to limit it because it's not our law to,
to change, what we normally see is just a different level of how all the significance criteria and
all the requirements are addressed. So, you, you can find some EAs that are relatively small, but
I can tell you over, over my 28 years, things have really changed. And I think it's, it's largely
due to, to the lawsuits that, that we get that people just become so conservative and, you know,
they, you know, they wanna make sure everything's covered so that when, you know, they go in
front of an accepting authority to accept this document, that it's clean and it's covered
everything. And, and somebody's not gonna bring up something that maybe was inadvertently
not included. So, what we...what we're finding, what I've seen over, over the last 28 years is
just that things have just gotten a lot more voluminous, and you've seen that. No matter how
long you'll be on the Council, you're gonna see just things, like just getting, you know, larger
and larger. So, that is a challenge.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White?
MR. GIROUX: Since Arm, you know, brought up the issue of, you know, litigation. And, and just to
give you an idea is that the, the problem with the 343 law is that it, it's inherently vague and
ambiguous in that it says it's gotta be sufficient. So, you're, you're, you're putting, you're
putting a developer in a really precarious place because he's gotta produce something that has to
allow the fact finders to make a rational decision based on, on fact. But to be sufficient is, you
know, it's like...
CHAIR CARROLL: Immeasurable.
MR. GIROUX: We're all reasonable, aren't we? No, we're, we're actually, you know, there is no
common sense. It, it goes to the point of when, when they're, they're trying to look at, like you
said, the fire. You know, that might be a problem for the citizens in that area. We don't know
until that document comes out and then there's a public challenge or there's the review. Then
that's when already if that wasn't done, then it causes another setback because in the courts, they
may see that as not being sufficient. Now, no analysis at all, that's gonna get you into a lot of
trouble. So, that's why you see the...a lot of people when they do the Environmental
Assessments now, to avoid this litigation trap, just throw, you know, they start talking about the
Hawaiian islands came out of the, the, the Pacific Ocean and, and at that time there was the
Crustacean Period. And you're, you're reading these documents going you've gotta be kidding
me. Really, you know? So, I think that's, that's the frustration is that the very nature of the law
and the language that they use is it's gotta be sufficient and, and really to give people that, that
bottom line is really difficult.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Does it make sense for you all to initiate requests for changes in the State law?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter) . . .
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I mean, you know, the, the challenge that I see is that we're putting so much
time and effort into answering every single question because of court cases, where every single
question doesn't have to be answered for a large number of projects that are right next to
something that went through the same process, answered all the same questions six months
earlier, from, you know, possibly. It just, it seems like we've allowed our laws and courts to
push us down a road to the point where it's so difficult to get to a point where you can make a
decision on investing money and you can only do it after you've spent hundreds of thousands of
dollars. 1, I don't... somebody said that that, that EA for the Haiku Fire Station cost between
$300,000 and $400,000. I don't know if that's correct, but if that is, that's a whole lot of
equipment. That's, I mean, that's a whole lot of stuff that we might be better off spending in
other ways.
MR. SPENCE: That EA, I, I can't say what it cost or what it didn't cost. But a lot of it is the, you know,
the, the engineering, the drainage plans, those kinds of things, that are included in that EA will
also show up in the Community Plan Amendment, will show up in the Change in Zoning, will
show up...so it's, you know, they're, they are...those, those are pretty much, you know, studies
that they have to do anyway.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: You know, in order to get to the Council and, you know, get funding and, and what not
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: But, but you are preaching to the choir.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . (Laughter) . .
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don't know. I haven't heard the three of you sing. But...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter) . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORMO: Maybe, you really don't want to.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The other question J have if it's okay, Chair, is, is we keep...I keep hearing that
SI-1PD is understaffed, underfunded, and way, way too slow. Is there any sense to seeing if
there's some way that somebody on your staff or somebody that we can hire for Maui County
can be deputized by SHPD in some way so that we can help move some of those requests along?
MR. SPENCE: We...actually the, the Deputy Director and I met with, with SHPD just today to talk
about our permitting process and how we can speed it up for both of us. So, we'll be developing
something of a plan. The thing is the State law says they're supposed to review everything that
has any ground altering. And of course, I mean just.. .we just logically understand that not
everything is gonna have an impact on historic resources. So, we're going to be working on a
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way that we meet the requirements of State law while also not, you know, having to burden them
with just every little thing. So, we're, we are working on that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (GB, EC, DC, DM, JP, MV, MW, RC)
ACTION: DEFER.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing none, thank you, Members, and thank you, Mr. Spence and your
Department, for your presentation. We really appreciate it and I hope to work closely with you
to perhaps make it more efficient for this Council working with your Department.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, community...or, Committee Members.
CHAIR CARROLL: This Planning Commission [sic] meeting of February 2, 2011...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Land Use.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Land Use.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Land Use Committee.
COUNCMMEMBER MATEO: Land Use.
CHAIR CARROLL: Pardon?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Land Use Committee.
CHAIR CARROLL: Land Use Committee, yes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter) . . .
COUNCMMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Forgive me for trying to take over somebody else's Committee.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Laughter) . .
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CHAIR CARROLL: This Land Use Committee of February 2, 2011 is now adjourned. . .

(gavel) .

ADJOURN: 4:10 p.m.
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